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I. MOTION FOR DEFAULT

On December 30,2011 an Administrative Complaint and Notice of Opportunity

for Hearing ("Complaint") was issued by the United States Environmental Protection

A ncy ("EPA" or "Complainant"), pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Toxic'Substances

Co trol Act ("TSCA"), 15 U.S.c. § 2615(a), the federal regulations set forth at 40 C.F.R.

P 745, Subpart F, and the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the

Administrative Assessme~t of Civil Penalties and the Revocation, Termination or

sulpension of Permits ("Consolidated Rules of Practice"), 40 C.F.R. Part 22. The

re~pondent in this Compl~int is Crespo Realty, Inc. ("Respondent"). A copy of the

C Implaint is attached as Exhibit A.
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A copy of the Complaint was received by Respondent on January 19,2012, as

, .~ j

enced by the attached copy of the certified mail return receipt "green card", which

filed in connection with Complainant's Proof of Service on January 26, 2012. See
,

I

E ibit B. The Complaint was accompanied by a cover letter addressed to David Crespo,

ondent's President See Exhibit C. Both the Complaint and the cover letter

~ i~ally informed Respondent of the requirement, found in Section 22.15(a) of the
...... ::.::, < I

~"7 ,,~:-~' !

1=0 sei.ll~ated Rules, that an Answer to the Complaint be filed within 30 days after service
f./l ~-' -:: '

'<5tt dCOmplaint. As oft~e date of this Motion, Respondent has not filed an Answer to
"<'r. I:c .; ,
the CQrnplaint. Complainant, therefore, moves for an Order holding Respondent in

~de ault and imposing a penalty of $40,010.

II. DISCUSSION

I

I

Violations 'Deemed Admi tted as a Result of DefaultA.

ested.re

Pursuant to 40 C.F:.R. § 22.17(a), a party may be found to be in default, in
I

rel(!vant part, upon failing to file a timely answer to the complaint. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R.

§ 2b.17(a), default by a re~pondent constitutes an admission of all facts alleged in the

~tPI'i"' P~m' '0 '1 C.F.R. §22.17(b), , moti" '0< d",." m." ,p~ily ,he

penalty or other relief sought and state the legal and factual grounds for the relief

I

The law and facts r'ith regard to Respondent's violations ofTSCA are set forth in
I
,

il in the Complaint, and this recitation is incorporated herein by reference. As
I

de ailed in the Complaint, Respondent failed to comply with a number ofregulatory
I

re uirements in each of five (5) lease transactions. By virtue of Respondent's default, the

2
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fact al allegations supporting these alleged violations are deemed to be admitted. These
,

I

vio ations include the following:
,

I

945 Elm Street, 2nd Floor (Front) Lease Transaction

Count I: Failure to include either as an attaclunent to, or within, the lease

i

the Lead Warning Statement required by 40 C.F.R. § 745.1 13(b)(l ).
I
,

Count 6: Failure to include either as an attaclunent to, or within, the lease

I

the disclosure statement required by 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(2).
I

Count II: Failure to include either as an attaclunent to, or within, the lease a
,

"

list of records/reports or a~ indication that no such records/reports are available as
I

re ired by 40 C.F.R. § 7~5.113(b)(3).
I

i

Count 16: Failure to include either as an attaclunent to, or within, the lease
I

i

receipt of information' statement required by 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(4).
i
I

Count 21: Failure to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease
I

Sl atures certifying to the accuracy of statements required by 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(6).
I

945 EI~ Street, 1st Floor (Front) Lease Transaction
i

Count 2: Failure to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease
I

th1 Lead Warning Statement required by 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(l).

Count 7: F~ilure to include either as an attaclunent to, or within, the lease

the disclosure statement required by 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(2).
i
I

Count 12: Failure to include either as an attaclunent to, or within, the lease a

i

lis of records/reports or an indication that no such records/reports are available as
I

re uired by 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(3).

I

3
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Count 17: Failure to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease

I

eceipt of information statement required by 40 C.F.R. § 745.1 13(b)(4).
,

i
,

Count 22: Failure to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease
I

atures certifying to the accuracy of statements required by 40 C.F.R. § 745.1 13(b)(6).
,

i

.'

533 Franklin Street, 151 Floor (Rear) Lease Transaction
I

Count 3: Failure to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease
,

I

the Lead Warning Statement required by 40 C.F.R. § 745.1 13(b)(l).
I

Count 8: Failure to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease

i

the disclosure statement r~quired by 40 C.F.R. § 745.1 13(b)(2).
,

i

Count 13: Failure to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease a

i

lis of records/reports or an indication that no such records/reports are available as

re uired by 40 C.F.R. § 7~5.113(b)(3).

i

Count 18: Failure to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease
I
,

th receipt of information statement required by 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(4).

i

Count 23: Failure to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease
I

Sl natures certifying to the accuracy of statements required by 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(6).
I

425 N. 10th Street, 2nd Floor Lease Transaction
I

Count 4: Failure to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease

I

th Lead Warning Statement required by 40 C.F.R. § 745.1 13(b)(l).
I

Count 9: Failure to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease

th disclosure statement Lquired by 40 C.F .R. § 745 .113(b)(2).

4
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I

Count 14: Failure to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease a

I

list IDf records/reports or an' indication that no such records/reports are available as

I

req ired by 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(3).

I

Count 19: Failure to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease
I

the eceipt ofinfonnation ~tatementrequired by 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(4).

j Count 24: FailLe to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease

sig atures certifying to th1 accuracy of statements required by 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(6).

609 N. 10th Street, I" Floor (Rear) Lease Transaction

i

Count 5: Failure to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease

I

the Lead Warning Statement required by 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(l).

I

CountlO: Failure to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease

I

the disclosure statement r~quired by 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(2).

I

Count 15: Failure to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease a

list of records/reports or l indication that no such records/reports are available as
i

re ired by 40 C.F.R. § 7rs.I13(b)(3).

Count 20: Failure to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease

i

receipt ofinfonnation'statement required by 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(4).
I
I

Count 25: Failure to include either as an attachment to, or within, the lease

natures certifying to tJe accuracy of statements required by 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(6).

I

B. Civil Penalty

i

The authority for acivil penalty is found in Section 1018 of the Residential Lead-

B sed Paint Hazard Redltion Act of 1992, 42 U.S.C. § 4852d, which authorizes the

I

5
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I

asstsment of a civil penary under Section 16 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2615, in the

majimum amount of$10,000 for each violation of Section 409 ofTSCA, 15 U.S.C.

§ 2 89. This maximum arount was adjusted to $11,000 for violations occurring after

March 15,2004 and on or1before January 12,2009, and to $16,000 for violations

occfrring after January 12,2009, pursuant to the Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation

A4J1ustment Rule, 40 C.FJ Part 19. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22. 14(a)(4)(ii), Complainant

didlnot propose a specifiJpenalty in the Complaint. However, pursuant to 40 C.F.R.

§ 2~.14(a)(4)(ii), the com~laint contained an explanation of the number of and severity

of iolations. I

For purposes of d~terrniningthe amount of any civil penalty to be assessed,

SI'i"" 16 "fTSCA, 15 'i.s.c. § 2615, ""i= FYA '" mk, i"'" "'00'"' tl" mill",

circmmstances, extent, and gravity of the violation or violations alleged and, with respect

to ~e violator, ability to Jay, effect on ability to continue to do business, any history of

prilr such violations, the 1egree of culpability, and such other matters as justice may

re~ire ("statutory factorSl,). In developing the proposed penalty, Complainant has taken

int account the ParticUIJ facts and circumstances of this case with specific reference to

I

th statutory factors set forth in Section 16 ofTSCA and EPA's Section 1018 Disclosure
I

Ru e Enforcement RespoJse and Penalty Policy ("ERP '), dated December 2007. A copy

I

of he ERP is attached as Exhibit D. The ERP provides a rational, consistent and

equitable methodology fdr applying the statutory penalty factors enumerated above to

I

pa icular cases. Therefore, Complainant has followed the suggested calculations and,
I

m thodology in the ERP to the maximum extent possible consistent with the statutory
I

pe alty factors and the sp'ecific circumstances of this case. Pursuant to the December 29,

6
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2008 Amendments to EPA's Civil Penalty Policies to Implement the 2008 Civil Monetary

I

Pen lty Inflation Adjustment Rule (Effective January 12, 2009), penalties for violations
I
I

cite in the Complaint, all of which occurred prior to January 12,2009, need not be
I

adjUjted for inflation. I

It should be noted that Complainant has not taken into consideration

ResJ!londent's ability to paJ the proposed penalty other than to note that there is no

I

curr nt information to support a belief that Respondent cannot pay the full penalty.

Whi e Complainant has thJ ultimate burden of persuasion regarding ability to pay,

ation regarding a rJpondent's ability to pay is normally within the control of that

I

ndent, and therefore ",where a respondent does not raise its ability to pay as an issue

in it answer ...[COmPlaiJant] may properly argue and the presiding oftker may

conflude that any Objectio~ to the penalty based upon ability to pay has been waived." In

re Jew Waterbury, Ltd., 5
1

E.A.D. 529, 542 (E.A.B. 1994). In this case Respondent, by

"+1"•• ",,, [,dod '" ,+ i" 'bili~ '" p"y " M I,,", "' in"od"~ My ",id~~
wh tsoever to support its burden of production regarding ability to pay. Therefore, no

I

fu er consideration of the issue is warranted.
I
I

The penalty calcul~tion under the ERP relies primarily on two factors. The
I

"Ci cumstance" level looks at the relative risk that the violation would impair ability of
I

the purchaser or lessee to bvaluate the risks of lead exposure at the property. These levels

I

ran e from Level 1 to Level 6, with Level 1 being most serious. See Exhibit D, page 12.

I

Th "Extent" level looks ~t the nature of the persons potentially exposed to lead paint

ha4ards, with the highest levels being assigned where the most vulnerable persons --

I
7
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I

chi dren under the age of six (6) and/or pregnant women -- will occupy the premises. See

E) ibit D, pages 12-13. I

At the time of the IViolations alleged in the Complaint in connection with the 945

EI Street, 2nd Floor (Front) Lease Transaction, children under the age of six (6) were

I

res'ding in or to be residing in such premises. See Exhibit E. Consequently and in

ac ordance with the ERP j the violations alleged in connection with the 945 Elm Street,
II

2n Floor (Front) Lease Transaction (i.e., Counts I, 6, II, 16 and 21) are assessed as

" ajor Extent" violationl. See Exhibit D, Appendix B, page 29. At the present time,

I

mplainant has yet to obtain information as to the ages of children who may have been
I

liv'ng, or as to whether aAy pregnant women were living, in any of the other four (4)
I

re idential dwellings at i~sue. Respondent's default makes it impossible for Complainant

w fOg,., i" di~""'Y"1""~ i~~. "wigh' "" j"'tifiod ""dcr ,",~ 'i""m,,,",,~ '"
~riw adverse inferenc~~ lro~ Respondent:.s lack O.f cooperation. Though the ERP

Illltructs EPA to use a Srgmficant Extent· factor III cases where the age of the youngest

in ividual residing in the Ipremises is not known, Complainant is instead giving
I
I

Rspondent the benefit of the doubt and assuming that no children under the age of six

(6 or pregnant women Jere living in any of the other residential dwellings. See Exhibit

I

D page 13. Except as described above for violations alleged in connection with the 945
I

Elm Street, 2nd Floor (Frint) Lease Transaction (i.e., Counts 1,6, II, 16 and 21),

C Implainant is assessinJ the level of all of the other violations as "Minor Extent"

Vi lations. See Exhibit D
i
, Appendix S, page 29.

I

As set forth ir\. the Complaint, the assessed circumstance level varies with the

I

t e of violation. The following circumstance levels are proposed in this case:

II

I 8
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9

,

i

I

I

!

Violations of40 C.F.R. §§ 745.l13(b)(l): Violations ofthe disclosure

i

requirements set forth at 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(I) are deemed to represent a
I

"high" level of imJairment to a lessee's ability to assess the information required

i

to be disclosed and have been characterized as Circumstance Level 2 violations

in the ERP. See Elhibit D, Appendix B, pages 27 and 30. The failure to provide

!
the required Lead Warning Statement deprived each of the tenants, before they

became obligated hnder the lease, of information they could have used to assess
I

whether to enter iJ to the lease and to better protect themselves and their
I

families, including warnings that exposure to lead-based paint can be particularly
,

I

harmful to pregna~t woman and young children, warnings as to the specific

!

exposure pathwa~s from lead-based paint (i.e. paint, paint chips, and paint dust).
,

These violations l~ad to a high probability of impairing the ability of tenants to

I
make informed decisions. As a result, each of the violations alleged in Counts I

i

through 5 of the Complaint have been assessed as Circumstance Level 2

I

violations. Under the ERP a Level 2 violation with a Major Extent level is
I

assessed a $10,320 penalty (Count I), and a Level 2 violation with a Minor

Extent level is aslessed a $1,550 penalty (Counts 2, 3, 4 and 5). See Exhibit D,

d· !Appen IX B, page 30.
I

Violations of 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(2): Violations of the disclosure

requirements set It 40 C.F.R. § 745.1 13(b)(2) are deemed to represent a

i

"medium" level of impairment to a lessee's ability to assess the information

!

required to be disclosed and are characterized as Circumstance Level 3 violations

!
in the ERP. See Exhibit D, Appendix B, pages 27 and 30. The failure to inform

I

I
I

B

A.
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I
the tenants of kn0r lead hazards or to state that the owner has no knowledge of

the presence of such hazards deprived each of the tenants, before they became

obligated under tJe lease, of information they could have used to assess whether
I

to enter in to the Ibase and to better protect themselves and their families. As a

result, each of thel violations aIleged in Counts 6 through 10 of the Complaint

have been assessel~ as Circumstance Level 3 violations. Under the ERP a Level

3 violation with a'Major Extent level is assessed a $7,740 penalty (Count 6), and

a Level 3 violatiol with a Minor Extent level is assessed a $770 penalty (Counts

7,8,9 and 10). sle Exhibit D, Appendix B, page 30

I
C. Violations of 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(3): Violations of the disclosure

. I

requirements set at 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(3) are deemed to represent a "low"

I

probability of impairing lessees' ability to assess the information required to be
,

disclosed and are !characterized as Circumstance Level 5 violations in the ERP.
I

See Exhibit D, Afpendix B, pages 28 and 30. The failure to obtain a statement

confirming that lessees received the disclosure of known lead hazards (or

'I

statement that the owner has no knowledge of the presence of such hazards)

prevents both EPl and the Respondent from being able to accurately determine

if the required dilclosures occurred and thus creates a significant but relatively

. IIlow fisk that the essees were not adequately informed of the hazards. As a

result, each of thi violations aIleged in Counts II through 15 of the Complaint

have been assesst as Circumstance Level 5. Under the ERP a Level 5 violation

with a "Major EJtent" level is assess a $2,580 penalty (Count II) and a Level 5

10
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page 30.

I

I

I

violation with a "Minor Extent" level is assessed a $260 penalty (Counts 12, 13,
I

14, and IS). See E\rnibit D, Appendix B, page 30.

I

Violations of 40 CiF.R. § 745.l13(b)(4): Violations of the disclosure

requirements set a! 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(4) are deemed to represent a

!
"medium" probability of impairing a lessee's ability to assess the information

I
I

required to be disclosed and are characterized as Circumstance Level 4 violations

I

in the ERP. See Exhibit D, Appendix B, pages 28 and 30. The failure to obtain a

I

statement confirming that the lessees received the lead hazard pamphlet and the
I

disclosure Ofkn0r lead hazards (or statement that the owner has no knowledge

of the presence 0YUCh hazards) prevents both EPA and the Respondent from

being able to accurately determine if the required disclosures occurred and thus

I

creates a significart but medium risk that the lessees were not adequately
,

I

informed of the h~zards. As a result, each of the violations alleged in Counts 16
I

through 20 of Co~plainthave been assessed as Circumstance Level 4 violations.

I

Under the ERP a Level 4 violation with a "Major Extent" level is assessed a

I

$5,160 penalty (Count 16) and a Level 4 violation with a "Minor Extent" level is
I

assessed a $520 Jenalty (Counts 17, 18, 19 and 20). See Exhibit D, Appendix B,
I

I

Violations of 40 C.F.R. § 745.1 13(b)(6): Violations of the disclosure

requirements setL40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(6) are deemed to represent a "low"
I

probability of impairing a lessee's ability to assess the information required to be
,

disclosed and ar~ characterized as Circumstance Level 6 violations in'the ERP.
i

See Exhibit D, A~pendix B, pages 29 and 30. The failure to obtain signatures

I
I

I

E.

D.
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from all of the rel'evant parties makes it difficult to assess whether the other
I,

disclosure requir~ments were complied with, and thus creates a significant but

I

relatively low risk that the lessees were not adequately infonned of the hazards.

I

As a result, each of the violations alleged in Counts 20 through 25 of the
,

I

Complaint have been assessed as Circumstance Level 6. Under the ERP a Level
I .

6 violation with a"Major Extent" level is assessed a $1,290 penalty (Count 21)

I

and a Level 6 violation with a "Minor Extent" level is assessed a $130 penalty
"

I

(Counts 22, 23, 24 and 25). See Exhibit D, Appendix B, page 30.

I

Complainant does',not propose to make any adjustments to the penalty under the

I

adjistment factors set fo']h in the ERP. Complainant is not aware of any past violations

of the lead regulations, and is not aware of any circumstances from which to conclude

thaf Respondent's level Jculpability was either greater or lesser than the nonnaL

Colplainant is unaware Jf any extraordinary factors, either aggravating or mitigating.
'i

The total proposed penalty for the violations set forth in the Complaint is $40,0 IO.
I

I

A summary of the penalti~s for each of the properties is set forth in Exhibit F.

Respectfully submitted,

~i~A~--
Senior Assistant Regional Counsel

III. CONCLUSION

Date

I
I
I

For the forgoing reasons the Regional Judicial Officer should issue a Default

I

Order against Responderit ordering Respondent to pay a civil penalty of $40,0 IO.

I

II

APR 2 0 201Z I
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Date

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I

I hereby certify that a copy of the Motion for Default Order filed with the
!

EPA Regio, III Regional Hearing Clerk on April 19, 2012 in the above-referenced matter,

Docket No TSCA-03-20I 2-0069! was sent today to the following recipient via UPS Overnight:
!

Responden: David Crespo, PreLdent
Crespo Realty, Inci
Flushing, NY 11318

I

Crespo Reali y, Inc.
5918 ~7'h Street
Flushmg, N 11378
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